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PREFACE.

I1 appeared by some unrecorded deeds and other documents, casually met with
several years ago. that Joel Baily, the settler in Chester County, had acted as attorney
for one Daniel Baily of the parish of Bromham, in Wiltshire, England, and a re-
lationship was suspected ; ard especially from the fact that Joel Baily had named
his eldest son Daniel.

Being in England in 1907, after the greater part of the records herein presented
had been collected. [ visited Bromham in behalf of some members of the family, and
spent two days in the old parish church, poring over the voluminous registers of
baptisms, marriages and deaths, with their quaint old style of writing and variations
in the spelling of names. which added immensely to their interest. For this oppor-
tunity | was under obligation to the kindness of the Rector, who trusted me to make
the examination alone, which was contrary to the usual custom elsewhere. On my
mentioning to him that Daniel was a family name he stated that he then had a person
of that name working in his garden. This Daniel Bailey was interviewed and stated
that his father. James Bailey. was for some time in the employ of the East India
Company as a private soldier. Of his grandfather’s name he was not certain. but
had an impression it was John. He had no local traditions of the family.

Parish registers were instituted in England in 1538, but in comparatively few
instances are the carliest still preserved. 'Those of Bromham begin at 1560 with
marriages and burials. and 1566 for baptisms. There are some gaps, showing neglect
to make entries.

It was a great satisfaction to find the baptism of Joel Baily; also that of his
father, Daniel, and of his grandfather. Thomas Baily, or Bayly, as it was written.
It may be supposed that the family had existed in that region for several hundred
years, but owing to the general illiteracy of the times, the scarcity of records, and
their illegibility to all except experts. it is very uncertain what the outcome of a
further search might be.

But it is just this difficulty which gives zest to the search and gratification over
success. If the North Pole could be reached as easily as the Bermuda Islands the
fact would be of no more interest than the crossing of the Equator.

As several years have elapsed since this work was begun there have been many
births, deaths, marriages and changes of residence which will not be found in its
pages. It is to be regretted that some hranches could not be located, as also that
some persons who were addressed failed to respond. This is but the experience of
all genealogists.

(iii)



iv PREFACE.

Care has been taken to make the record as accurate as possible yet there may be
errors which have escaped detection. The compiler will be glad to have his attention
called to these, and also to receive information respecting the missing branches, which
might be used in any possible future edition.

Gui.BerT CoPE.
West Chester, Pa., 1 Mo. 22, 1912.
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EXPLANATIONS.

Datex are given in the order of menth. dav and vear: and partly for economy
in space and partly because the Society of Friends have used numbers instead of
names for months. these are given in numerical style. Many of the Bailys have
een members of this Society. )

A fact not generally known is that prior to 1752 the civil year began on March
25th, and March was styled the Ist month. The tenth month was December, the
11th January, and the 12th February: and between the 31st of December and 25th
of March it was customary to indicate two years. as Feb. 18. 1735-6.

The number of the gencration. as given at top of page, refers to the names
consecutively numbered. For a further economy of space the children of those so
numbered. and occasionally the grandchildren. will be found to follow the mention
of the parent. when this can be done without confusion. Otherwise the name is
carried forward to the next generation.

The abbreviations b.. m. and d. stand for born. married. and died: and the
dates which follow refer to the names immediately preceding them. For instance,
John Thomas, b. 7. 15. 1785: m. 11. 9. 1807. Mary Jones. d. 4. 13, 1827: The last
dates refers to Mary Jones and not to John Thomas.
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ERRATA.

At bottom of p. 7, add date of Daniel Baily's will, 7 May, 1672.

P. 73. No. 331, Joshua Baily always used the appellation “ Jr.” which should have followed
his name.

P. 102. No. 405 should be /srael Miller.

168. Under No. 1155, erase “ No further record.”

282. 3d line from bottom: Fleming instead of Gleming.

285, near the bottom, the name Mayre should be Murye.

298. Paragraph beginning with Brinton Cooper should precede No. 253s.

349. Under 2919, Sarah B. Marshall should be Sara B.

358. In family of Annie E. H. Farra, Entiken should be Eniriken, and Leinard should be

Leonard.

Bottom of p. 417. Add—One of the daughters m. William F. Aull, of Pittsburgh, and they spend
their winters in California.

P. 551. Under 4544, Glysteen should be Gleysteen.

P. §63. At bottom, Michener accidentally repeated.

P. 5§69. No. 2018 should be 2019.

P. §71. No. 2028 should be 2027.
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INTRODUCTORY.

The first permanent settlement by the English race in America was made at
Jamestown, Virginia. in 1607 ; the second at Plymouth. Massachusetts by the Pil-
grims, in 1620. New York was settled by the Dutch about 1623, the Delaware by
Swedes about 1632, and Maryland by the English in 1633. The Swedes remained
alonyg the tide waters and not forming a strong colony their rule was overthrown in
1635 by the Dutch, who claimed the * South River,” as the Delaware was styvled in
contradistinction from the “ North River” or Hudson. These made little attempt
at colonization. and when New Amsterdam was captured by the English in 1664 its
dependency on the South River naturally fell to the victors. A temporary possession
was again obtained by the Dutch in 1673-4. but this had little influence on the colonial
life on the Delaware.

‘T'he settlement of New England was made by persons who had suffered perse-
cution on account of their religious belief and practice and here sought a peaceful
asylum for the enjoyment of their faith. About thirty years later another sect arose
in England under the leadership of George Fox. Acknowledging the Divine in-
spiration of the Holy Scriptures, they at the same time claimed as the chief guide of
their conduct the immediate influence of the Holy Spirit. They advocated a free
gospel ministry and refused to pay tithes or take oaths or engage in war. They
styled themselves * The Society of Friends,” but they were commonly called Quakers
—a title by which they are still generally known. Fidelity to their principles and
steadfast refusal to comply with the fashionable usages of the time which were
adverse to their conscientious convictions made them the subjects of violent perse-
cution. Numbers of them were cast into prisons, their property confiscated and
many died under their sufferings. William Penn, the son of an admiral in the
navy, was arrested for preaching to a number of people in Gracechurch Street, Lon-
don, and with his companion, William Mead, was tried at the Court known as
the Old Bailey, in 1670. The jurors, with a sense of human rights refused to give
a verdict against them, although condemned to be locked up without meat, drink, fire
or tobacco for two days, and were each fined forty marks for non-compliance with the
repeated demands of the Court to convict the prisoners. The jurors, whose names
deserve to be remembered by posterity, were Edward Bushel, Thomas Veere, Charles
Milson, William Plumstead, Henry Michel, Gregory Walklet, Henry Henley, John
Hammond, William Lever, John Brightman, James Damask and John Baily.

Among those who were the victims of persecution there were several of the name
of Baily, Bailey, Bayly or Bayley,* as will appear from the following extracts from
Besse’s ‘‘ Sufferings of the Quakers.”

* The variations in the spelling of the name is to be attributed no doubt to the illiteracy or
carelessness of the parties by whom the records were made. There is good reason to suppose that
most, if not all, these records refer to members of the same family—most of whom appear to have
been among the earliest members of * The Society of Friends” in England.



2 THE BAILY FAMILY.

Thomas Bayley and several others were committed to prison in Bristol, in 1682,
for attending meetings.

In 1656 William Bailey, going to visit some who were imprisoned in Devonshire,
was fined and cast into prison.

In the same year George Bailey. being concerned to utter some Christian exhor-
tation to the people in their public worship house at Melcomb, in Dorsetshire, was sent
to prison there and after three days removed to Dorchester Goal.

In 1658 William Bailey was a prisoner in Dorchester (oal.

In 1670, in Gloucestershire, from Daniel Bayly. a poor journeyman tailor, was
taken the bed on which his wife at that time layv sick.  Daniel Bayley and several
others were committed to prison in this county. in 1681. In 1686 Daniel Bailey and
many others were released from prison by virtue of King James's proclamation.

For a meeting at Plaistow. in Essex. 1682. and for William Falkner’s preaching
there, goods were taken by distress from (eorge Brown and Robert Bailey to the
value of £12, 138, 99,

In 1656 William Bayly and Anthony Mellidge. travellers, being near Ringwood,
Isle of Wight. were sent to prison. At the next assizes they were sent to the House
of Correction and kept there fourteen weeks.

In Hampshire, 1670, Peter Bayly suffered loss of goods by a fine for attending
a meeting at Frovle.

In Hertfordshire, 1663. William Baily was taken from a meeting at King's
Langley and sent to Hertford Goal, and for refusing the Oath of Allegiance was con-
tinued a prisoner for some years.

In 1679, for a meeting held at the house of the widow Townsend, in Broughton,
Leicestershire, there were taken from Richard Bailey seven heifers, worth £12. In
1680 he suffered further distress of his goods for the same reason. He had also
suffered about three and a half vears' imprisonment for refusing to swear. In 1685
Richard Bayley is mentioned as having been a prisoner about six years.

In Lincolnshire. 1673. John Bayley and several others were released from im-
prisonment in Lincoln Castle by order of King Charles.

In 1655. George Bayly. for speaking to the people in the Steeple-house of the
parish called St. Giles in the Fields, Middlesex. after the priest had ended his sermon
and prayer, was sent to prison and there continued about thirteen weeks.

In the time of the sessions, in London. 1662. Charles Bailey and two other
Friends came to a house not far off to hear how matters went with their persecuted
friends. The Court being informed where they were sent for them, tendered them
the oath and committed them to prison. William Bayley and five others, standing
quietly in the street, near the Bull and Mouth Meeting-place, were taken by soldiers
and carried to Richard Brown. who caused their hats to be pulled off with much
violence and wrath, and smote William Bayley with his fist several times, and when
William's wife reproved him for abusing her husband he struck her on the mouth
and threw her on the floor ; and though William cautioned him to beware what he did
he nevertheless struck her and threw her down again. and at length ordered his man
and other rude fellows to carry William to Newgate.
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On the 3d of July, 1670, at the time of a meeting at Grace Church Street, a
priest, guarded by soldiers, came out of an adjacent alehouse to the door. William
Bayley was then preaching, whom the soldiers took and carried before the Lord
Mayor, who committed him to Newgate for abusing the priest and disturbing him in
his office, though he had said nothing to the priest. When W. Bayley came before
the Mayor with his hat on the Mayor plucked it off, saying. You give no honour to
governours. William asked. Doth thy honour consist in taking off the hat? The
Mayor answered Yes. and passionately trod the hat under his feet. William replied,
Then thou treadest thy honour under foot. At the close of the sessions William Bayly
was fined £31, 1385, 44,

On the 13th of November following I'homas Bayly and forty others were taken
at a meeting in Westbury Street and sent to New Prison, where they suffered much
abuse from the keeper. In 1685 Samuel Bayly and forty-five others were discharged
out of the King's Bench prison.

On the 17th of June 1666, Mary Bailey, Sarah Bailey and several others were
taken from a meeting in Findon, Northamptonshire, kept all night in an alehouse, and
the next day sent to Northampton (Goal for six weeks.

In January, 1660, in Norfolk, Thomas Bayly and John Rack were fined forty
shillings each for refusing to swear.

Christopher Birkhead of Bristol and (George Baily of London. going to visit
their friends in Banbury Goal. Oxfordshire, were for their Christian Charity, by the
Mayor's order there detained ; the former three days and the latter several weeks.

In 1659 Stephen Bailey of Whitchurch, Somersetshire, was committed to prison
for refusing to pay tithes. The next year John Bailey and others were arrested and
put to much expence.

In Suliolk 'Thomas Bavley and others were prisoners in the County Goal at
Ipswich for absence from church.

In Warwickshire, 1659, the Friends were pulled out of a meeting at the house
of William Bayley, and beaten by a constable and a rude multitude accompanying
him.

On the 8th of January, 1660, Elizabeth Bayleys and forty-six others appeared
at a session at Worcester, and for refusing to take the oath of allegiance were com-
mitted to prison. In August, 1662. Simon Bailef and others were sentenced to pay a
fine of £5 each or be sent to the House of Correction for three months.

In Wiltshire, in January, 1661, Thomas Bayley and Thomas Segar, of Compton
Basset. for refusing to pay tithes were committed to the County Goal and detained
there two years and a half, and being afterward proceeded against in the County
Court had £4, 16® awarded against them, for which they had taken away a cow and
a mare worth £9.

In 1682 Henry Bayly and eighty others were prisoners at York for refusing to
take the Oath of Allegiance. In 1688 Henry Bayley was committed to prison at York
Castle, at the suit of Charles Nowel and Edward Hornby. Between 1683 and 1690
there was taken from Henry Bailey of Grindleton, property worth £9, 108, 64, for
tithes.
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George Bailey, going into France and zealously testifying against Popery and
worshipping of images, was taken into custody, committed to prison and died there.

The foregoing instances of persecution, as recorded by Besse. show that the name
of Baily was not confined to any one part of England.

Some Friends going to New England. met with no better treatment there. and
four of them were hung on Boston Common. In Maryland also they were whipped.
fined and imprisoned for non-compliance with the laws of the Pravince.

The several references to William Baily. as given by Besse. possibly relate to the
same person, born, it is thought. in the Isle of Wight. He had been a teacher among
the Baptists at Pool in Dorsetshire. where he was convinced by the ministry of George
Fox in 1635. and entered into society with the people called Quakers, amongst
whom he became a zealous preacher and traveled abroad in the exercise of his minis-
terial gift. For some time he followed a seafaring life and his death occurred in
1675, on a voyage from Barbadoes. He married Mary Fisher. born within two miles
of York. who had visited New England in company with Anne Austin. in 1636. They
were the first of the sect to arrive and they were immediately cast into prison, their
oooks burned by the hangman. and after a few weeks they were sent away on a vessel
to Barbadoes. Mary Fisher, the next vear. made a remarkable journey to visit Sultan
Mahomet IV, then encamped with his army near Adrianople. and by whom she was
received with respect. She married again, 1678. John Cross. and removed to Caro-
lina: died at Charleston in 1698. .

King Charles 11 had granted to his brother James. Duke of York, the territory
now forming the State of New Jersey. and the latter conveyed the same to Lord
Berkeley and Sir George Carteret. John Fenwick. a Friend, as trustee for Edward
Billinge, in 1673, purchased the interest of L.ord Berkeley, which by a division agreed
upon with Carteret. formed the province of West New Jersey. There was an under-
standing by which Fenwick was to have one-tenth of the province, and in 1675 he
led a colony of Friends who formed a settlement at Salem. Here at last was an
asylum where this persecuted people might enjoy freedom in religious worship. Some
disagreement arising between Fenwick and Billinge. it was happily settled through
the interposition of William Penn, and Billinge conveyed his nine-tenths of the
province to William Penn, Gawen Lawrie and Nicholas Lucas for the benefit of his
creditors. These divided the province into one hundred shares or * proprieties,” for
which they found purchasers among Friends in Yorkshire and in London. In 1677
another settlement was made at Burlington and the success of the colony was assured.

William Penn thus became interested in American colonization and conceived
the idea of becoming a provincial proprietary. The territory west of the Delaware
and lyving between New York and Maryland was still vested in the Crown, which. on
the other hand, was indebted to the estate of Admiral Penn in a considerable amount,
in liquidation whereof King Charles 11 granted to Penn’s son William the province of
Pennsylvania by a charter dated March 4, 1680-1. Penn at once began to sell
lands to prospective settlers and later sent over commissioners to lay out the town
of Philadelphia and attend to his various interests in the new colony; and in the
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summer of 1682 came over on the ship * Welcome ™ in company with about one
hundred persons of the same faith. He also purchased from John Fenwick the
remainder of his tenth part of West New Jersey, with the exception of 150,000 acres
which Fenwick reserved for his family.

Among the purchasers of Pennsylvania lands were the following:

Thomas Bailey, of the city of Bristol, bodice maker, 250 acres by deeds of Sept.
26 and 27, 1681.

Thomas Sagar, of Foxham, in the parish of Christian Malford, in the county of
Wilts, and Susanna Baily (or Bayly), of Catcomb, in the parish of Hillmartin, in
the same county, widow, 500 acres, by deeds of lease and release, Aug. 19 and 20,
1681.

William Bayly (or Baily), of Goatacre, in the county of \ilts, yeoman, 500
acres. by deeds of lease and release. Sept. 26 and 27, 1681.

_ Edward Bayley, of Pickwick, in the parish of Corsham, county of Wilts, 250
acres, May 23 and 24, 1682.

Henry Bayly, of Grindleton, county of York, yeoman, 1500 acres April 22, 1682.

It is not known that any of these came over to Pennsylvania, but from the
minutes of the Commissioners of Property and other sources the following facts
appear:

Thomas Bailey. of Bristol, conveved his 250 acres, May 8 and 9, 1713, to Edward
Roberts, of Philadelphia, the land not yet located.

Susanna Bayly married Samuel Workman, maltster, of Langley Burial, county
of Wilts, and they with Thomas Sagar conveyed the 500 acres of land to Daniel
Smith, of Marlborough, in Wiltshire, May 19 and 20, 1686.

William Baily sold 125 acres to John Bill. who sold the same to the above Daniel
Smith ; and the said William Baily. by will dated 2d of October, 1691, devised the
remainder to his nephew Jacob Button. of Calne, in the county of Wilts, who con-
veyed the same to Jeremiah Collett. of Chester County, Pennsylvania, Oct. 3 and 4,
1701.

Edward Bayley constituted his cousin Philip Roman his attorney 18th of 3 Mo.
(May). 1683, who took up the land in Birmingham Tow:.ship. Chester County, and
later became the owner thereof.

Henry Bayly conveved 230 acres to Alexander Giles, who took it up in Bucks
County, Pa. Henry Bayly. eldest son of the purchaser, by lease and release, December
13, 1696. conveved the remaining 1250 acres to Thomas Musgrove, of Warly, in the
county of York.

From the records of Friends in Wiltshire. England, we get these items relating
to the persons of the name of Baily.
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Marriages.

William Baily (or Bayly), of Catcomb. 2 Mo. 3. 1671, to Susannah Skeate.
of Foxham.

Mary Baily, of Bromham, 3 Mo. 14, 1676, to Isaac Selfe, of same.

Daniel Baily, of Bromham, 10 Mo. 12, 1686, to Mary Coole. of Devizes.

Thomas Bayly. of the parish of Tedbury, county of Gloucester. woolcomber.
11 Mo. 24, 1685, to Mirian Arndell. of same place.

Dorothy Bavly, of Whitly, parish of Melksham. daughter of Daniel Bailey, of
Bromham, 5 Mo. 13, 1708, at Melksham Meeting. to John Read. worsted comber,
of Chippenham.

Martha Bayly, of the parish of Langly. county of Wilts, spinster, 8 Mo. 10,
1710, at Chippenham Meeting, to Richard Truman, of Salisbury, Wilts, weaver,
son of Thomas T'ruman.

Ann Bayly, of Charlcot, Wilts, daughter of Jonathan Bavly. 7 Mo. 7, 1713, at
Brinkworth Meeting, to Anthony Lawrence, drugget maker, of parish of Charleton.

Births.

Martha Baily. 9 Mo. 10, 1673, daughter of William and Susan of Catcombe.

William Baily, 9 Mo. 26. 1675. son of William of Catcomb.

Hester Baily, 5 Mo. 23, 1670, dau. of Nathaniell of Chippenham.

John Baily, 7 Mo. 24, 1671, son of Edward of Compton.

Mary Bayly. 11 Mo. 14, 1673, dau. of Edward and Mary of Compton.

Thomas Bayly, 8 Mo. 14, 1675, son of same, of Compton Basset.

William Bayly, 12 Mo. 15, 1676, son of same, of same place.

Catherine Bayly, 9 Mo. 13. 1710, dau. of Thomas and Mary of Pickwick, Parish
of Corsham.

Betty Bayly. 9 Mo. 2, 1715, daughter of same.

Thomas Bayly. 4 Mo. 16, 1712, son of same, of Pickwick.

Edward Bayly. 12 Mo. 12, 1713, son of same, of same place.

John Bayly, 11 Mo. 9, 1723, son of same. of same place.

Deaths.

William Bailey, 9 Mo. 25. 1675, of Catcomb, carpenter.

Sarah Bayley. 11 Mo.. 1689-90. of Warminster, widow.

John Bayly, 1 Mo. 13. 1699, of Chippenham.

Mary Bavly. 8 Mo. 17. 1702, of Pickwick, parish of Corsham. wife of Edward.

Edward Bayly. 9 Mo. 29, 1707. of Pickwick.

Millicent Bavly. 9 Mo. 21. 1708, of Pickwick. wife of Thomas.

Sarah Bayly. of Frenchay. county of (loucester. wife of John. buried 6 Mo. 31,
1708, in parish of Mangotsfield.

Daniel Bavly, d. 12 Mo. 14, 1717-18.

Bridget Bavley. 1 Mo. 6. 1713-14. of Devizes.

Margret Bayley, 11 Mo. 28, 1713, of Chippenham. wife of Nathaniel.

Nathaniel Bayly. 8 Mo. 17. 1721, of Chippenham.
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REOORDS OF THE PARISH OF BROMHAM, WILTSHIRE.

Baptismas.
1567, March 7th: Thomas Bayly the son of Will™ Bayly.
1598, December 23: Anne Bayly daughter of Thomas Bayly.
1601, March 14, Daniel—Joel, the sonnes of ‘I'homas Bayly.
1603, September 14: ‘I'homas the sonne of Thomas Bayly of Chitow.
1605, March 2: Rebecca Bayly the daughter of Thomas Bayly and Anne his wife.
1606, Feb. 22: John Bayly the sonne of Thomas Bayly and of Jane his wife.
1608, May 29: John Bayly the sonne of Thomas Bayly and of Jane his wife.
1654, January 3: Ann Bavlie daughter of Daniel Baylie.
1656, ffebruary 15: Josias Bayvlie sonne of Daniell Baylie.
1658, January 29: Joel Baylie sonne of Daniell Baylie.
1662, November 30: Ann Baylie daughter of Daniell Baylie.
1666, June 14: Isack Bavlie sonne of Daniell Baylie.

Burials,
1605, October 6: Joel the sonne of Thomas Bayly and of Anne his wife Buryed.
1606, March 7: John Bayly the sonne of Thomas Bavly of Chittow.
1639, September 24: A prentice of Daniell Baylie.
1674, April 15th: Daniell Baylie an ould man.
Among nearly three hundred references to the family name the above are the only
instances where the names Daniel. Joel, Josiah and Isaac occur.

ABSTRAOT OF WILLS, &o.
Archdeaconry of Wilts, now lodged in Somerset House, London.

Will of Daniell Baily of Broomham in the county of Wilts, Broadweaver. ** heing
not well in lody.” &c. *“ Whereas [ some time since purchased of S* Edward Bayn-
tonn a chattell Leasehold for a Sertain terme.” &c. (l.ease dated 27 October 1652).
‘Fo Mary my now Loving wife I hequeath s9 Leaschold during her life. and after her
decease to my two sons Thomas Baily and Daniell Baily. . . The Rest of their three
Brothers and three Sisters. . . . To my son Thomas Baily aforesaid I doe further
give a broad Loamb [loom] with the appertennances: To son Daniell Baily one
hroad Lombe: ‘T'o my son [saacke Baily one great ceetell. . . . Loving wife Mary to
he executrix. . . . To my three sons. Josiah Baily. Joell Baily and Isaacke Baily and
my three daughters Mary Baily, Dorithy Baily and Ann Baily, all my goods and
rhattells. Friends Robard Stevens and Stephen Rawllings to be overseers of this
my will.

The mark of Daniell Baily (Seal)
_ (Wax seal with letters R. I.)

Signed sealled and in the Prsence of

Benimine B Knee his mark.
John I Knee his mark.
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Inventory, appraised 6 June 1674. Sum total 30Y—10—0; praised by us,
James Hancock: The R mark of Robert Webb. Exhibit, 7 May 1675.

Obligation of Mary Baily of Bromham in county of Wilts, Robert Webb de
Bromham, yeoman. 5 April 1675: Signed in presence of Tho: Power, Sarah Power,
her mark.

(The signatures of Mary Baily and Robert Webh are only partly visible. the
paper being in a state of great decay.)

INVENTORY OF (GGoops &c¢. oF Isaac BAvLIE.

A True & Prfect Inventory of all and singular v® (Goods & chattles of Isaac
Baylie late of Broomham, Deceased, Taken octobf y¢ 17.

Adjudged & Appraised by us Wal® (Gaby, Hen™ Hicks.

Bond: Jane Bayly of Bromham, Wilts, widow. and Danicl Bayly of same, yeo-
man, 3 Nov. 1727 (the abovebounden Jane Baily. the Relict & Administrator of Isaac
Bayly late of Bromham aforesaid. intestate). Jane Baily signs at foot.

ABSTRACT OF WILL oF DaxIElL. Baviy oF WESTBROOK.

Be it Remembered that I Daniel Bayly of Westbrook in the Parish of Broomham,
Weaver. make this my last Will & Testament &c.. in form following. ‘I'o Cousin Daniel
Bayly five shillings: To Cousin Ann Hunt ten shillings: To Cousin Elizaheth Moore
ten shillings : To Cousin Joel Bayly ten shillings: T'o Cousin John Bayly ten shillings:
To Cousin Mary Bayly. . (all these aforenamed six persons being Children of my
Brother Isaac Bayly, Deceased.) To Cousin Mary Foord Daughter of my Brother
Thomas Bayly Deceased five shillings: T'o Cousin Elizabeth Baylies two Children of
Honton (they being Children of my Cousin Joel Bayly Deceased). ten shillings: To
Cousin Ann Blake. Daughter of my sister Ann Blake Deceased ten shillings: ‘To
Cousin Mary Gee Wife of John Gee. six pounds: To Cousin Warborough Bayly,
Daughter of my Brother Thomas Bayly. one shilling: To Cousin Mary Gee. Wife of
John Gee aforesaid, all the (Goods and everything whatsoever in her possession belong-
ing to me. Two Friends Andrew Sealy and George Woodward, hoth of Parish of
Broomham, Executors. To Cousin Isaac Bayly, son of my Brother Isaac Bayly, De-
ceased, all that my messuage, Land Tennaments &c., in the Tything of Westbrook in
the Parish of Broomham. Dated 9 Oct. 1730.

Daniel D Bayly. his mark (Seal)
(On seal a lion? passant.)
Signed, sealed. &c. in presence of
John Stump. Joell Miell. Josias Cheivers.

Renunciation of executorship by the above Andrew Sealy, Druggett maker, and
George Woodward of Bromham, veoman; asking that adm’on with will may be
granted to Isaac Bayly of Westbrook, aforesaid, Broadweaver, nephew of said de-
ceased and principal legatee. Signed by both 9 Feb. 1732.

Obligation: Isaac Bavly (principal legatee and adm® of goods of Daniel Bayly
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of Westbrook), of Westbrooke, in the parish of Bromham, Broad Weaver, before the
Dean of New Sarum, plummer, and John Shergold jun. of same city.
Signed by Isaac [ Bayly
(Wax Seals
Edward Dean
men’s heads)
John Shergold.

The facts here collected appear to warrant the following pedigree:
I
WILLIAM BAYLY.
IL

THOMAS BAYLY, his son,
baptized March 7th, 1567, married Anne and a second wife, Jane, and lived at
Chitto. in the parish of Bromham. Wiltshire.

I

Children of Thomas and Anne Bayly.

Anne Bayly, baptized December 23d, 1598.

DANIEL BAYLY, baptized March 14th, 1601; buried April 15th, 1674 ; mar-
ried Mary Probably married and resided in another parish for some vears, but
in 1652 leased some property at Westhrook. in the parish of Bromham, where he fol-
lowed weaving.

Joel Bayly, perhaps twin with Daniel, being baptized same date; buried Octo-
ber 6th, 1605.

Thomas Bayly, baptized September 14th, 1603.
Rebecca Bayly, baptized March 2d, 1605.
By second wife, Jane.
John Bayly, baptized February 22d, 1606 ; buried March 7th, 1606.
John Bayly, baptized May 29th, 1608—perhaps the same John Bayly of Brom-
ham, broad-weaver, whose will was proved in 1675.
IV.
Children of Daniel and Mary Bayly, of Westbrook.

Thomas Bayly, married and had Mary, who m.
Elizabeth ; Warborough, a daughter. living, unm., in 1730.

Foord; ? Joel, who m.

Daniel Bayly, a broad-weaver, of Westbrook, died 1732; purchased land in
Pennsylvania but remained in England.
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Mary Bayly, mentioned in her father's will.
Dorothy Bayly, ditto.
Ann Bayly, baptized January 3d, 1654 ; died young.

Josias Bayly, baptized February 15th, 1656; probably died young or un-
married.

JOEL BAYLY, the Pennsylvania colonist. baptized January 29th, 1658.

Ann Bayly, baptized November 30th, 1662 ; married —— Blake, and was living
in 1730.

Isaac Bayly, baptized June 14th. 1666; died 1727; leaving widow Jane and
issue, Daniel. Ann (Hunt). Elizabeth ( Moore). Joel, John, Mary and Isaac.

JOEL BAILY.

The first evidence yet discovered of the presence of Joel Baily in Chester County
is the following warrant for taking up some land:

By the Commissioners empowered to Grant Lotts and Lands in the Province of
Pennsylvania and the Territories thereunto belonging.

At the Request of Joel Bayley on behalf of Daniel Bavley in right of William
Smith, of Brumhamhouse, Purchaser, that we would grant him to take up one hundred
twenty five acrres of Land in the County of Chester These are therefore in the Pro-
prietary’s Name to Will and Require thee forthwith to Survey or Cause to be Sur-
veyed unto him the said Number of Acres in the aforesaid County where not already
taken up according to the method of ‘T'ownships appointed by the Governor he seating
& improveing the same within six months from the date of Survey and make Return
thereof into the Governor's Secretary's Office.  Given at Philad® the 25th of 9tb
month 1684.

For Thomas Holme Jarmes CLAYPOOLE.

Surveyor Gen'll } RORERT '['URNER.

Ordered C. A. to lay it out.

William Smith. of Bromhamhouse. in the county of Wilts, was a purchaser of
1250 acres of land from William Penn. by deeds of lease and release dated March
1 and 2, 1681. Of this he conveved 125 acres to Daniel Bayly, of Westhrook. in the
parish of Bromham. weaver. by deeds of October 19 and 20, 1681. The witnesses
to these were William Haves, Sr.. and Henry Hayes. The land was taken up in
Birmingham Township, Chester County. a short distance south of Birmingham Meet-
ing House. Joel Baily. as attorney for Daniel Baily. conveved the said 123 acres
to John Radley June 6. 1695. but did not make a complete title. John Radley. by
will dated Jan. 26, 1701. devised the same to his son William Radlev. Among the
title papers is a receipt for sixteen shillings, nine pence, quit-rent, paid by William
Radley. 25th of 1st month. 1703, to Isaac Taylor, collector. William Radley sold
sixty-seven and a half acres of this to Henry Nayle. April 8. 1713. although the title
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was still defective, but he and Joel Baily gave bond in the sum of £90 to obtain a
good title within one year. Accordingly Daniel Baily, of the parish of Bromham,
weaver, executed deeds of lease and release, dated 10 Mo. 5 and 6, 1713, to William
Radley, of Birmingham, for the said 125 acres, for £13. And William Radley. of
Birmingham, yeoman, and wife Elizabeth, conveyed the sixty-seven and a half acres
to Henry Nayle, August 31, 1714. The witnesses were Isaac Taylor, Richard Webb,
Joel Baily and Alexander Steuart. Joel Baily was doubtless a brother to Daniel.

William Withers, of Bishops Cannings. Wiltshire, a purchaser of 500 acres
of land from William Penn, conveyed the same by deed of gift, Jan. 22, 1682, to his
son Thomas Withers; who coming over in the year 1683 took up the land in Chi-
chester Township, Chester County. The facts here presented give reason to suspect
that Joel Baily came over with Thomas Withers, and was in his employ.

Att a Court held att WirLLiaMm Woob, President.
Chester for y* County ] JoHN SIMCOCKE 3

of Chester y® 1%t 34 day ROBERT WADE

in the 1%t weeke of y® i GEORGE MaRIs

7t motb 1685. ) JoHN BLUNSTONE Y Justices

NicHOLAs NEwWLAND
ROBERT PILE
THoOMAS USHER

John ffisher Pit.
John Calvert Defendt

Jeremiah Col’ett. Shreife

} withdrawne Robert Eyre, Clerke

Joel Bayly, Plt Jury returned and Impanelled,

Thomas Wither, Defend! Edward Beasar David Ogden

in an Action of Debt William Cloud Jun® Michaell Blunstone

for wages ‘ Thomas Minkshaw Thomas \Worth
James Browne George Wood
Thomas Smith ffrancis Yarnall
Henry Hastings John Smith

“ Thomas Usher heing Attested declareth y' at a monethly meeting Att Chi-
chester it was there agreed between Joel Bayly and Thomas Wither that the said
Thomas Wither should Pay the Wages due to Joel Bayly and soe discharge him, and
further saith not.

“ Robert Pile being Attested declareth that he heing at a monethly meeting at
Chichester he did hear ‘T'homas Wither say that he would willingly allow Joel Bayly
his wages and so Discharge him.

* Jeremiah Collett being Attested declareth that Joel Bavly desired him to Arbi-
trate his Cause. upon which he the said Collett did aske Thomas Wither whether he
did promise the said Joel his wages att a monethly Court [meeting] held att Chi-
chester. who told him he did. and further saith not.

* Thomas Rawlenson being Attested declareth that ‘Thomas Wither did borrow
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a Whipe, Whipe Cord and Bed Cord of Joel Bayly and did promise to return or make
satisfaction for y® same.

“‘The Jury finde for y® Plaintife 4£: 113: 84 damage and Cost of Suite.

‘* Hereupon Judgment is granted.”

At a Monthly Meeting of Chichester and Concord 5 Mo. 13, 1685:

‘ Jeremia Cloud & Elizebeth Bayly decleareth their intentions of marridg to
each other the first time: the meeting ordereth John Harding & Phillip Roman to
inquier in to his Life and conversation of Je*" Cloud and his Clearness from all
others & to give an Account to v* next monthly meeting.”

6 Mo. 10, 1685: * Jerimia Cloud and Elezebeth Baily declareth their inten-
tion of marrig v¢ second time: nothing apearing to obstruct it. so v meeting Left
them to proseed according to v¢ good order of truth.”

The marriage probably occurred within a week or ten dayvs after the last date.
Elizabeth Baily was doubtless a near relation to Joel Baily.

As already stated, William Penn became the owner of a great deal of land in
Salem County, N. J., much of which he disposed of through his agent. James Nevell.
The latter granted a warrant, 5 Mo. 10, 1686. to Richard ‘I'indall. Survevor. to lay out
150 acres of land for Joel Bailey, next to William Flower's, on O)ldman’s Creek. and
10 acres of marsh, convenient as may be, “ but not predudicial to the Proprietor.”
William Flower afterward exchanged his Jersey property for some at Chichester in
Pennsylvania, and removed to the latter place. which was also the residence of
Thomas Withers, in whose service Joel Baily appears to have been prior to 1683.
Whether the latter actually obtained title to the Jersey land. or how he disposed of it,
has not been ascertained.

‘“ At the Monthly Meeting of Chichester and Concord. held at Concord 1 Mo.
14, 1686-7, Joel Bayly & An Short declared their intention of marridg v® ferst time:
this meeting orders John Harding & John Kingsman to inspect into his conversation &
clarenes from all others.”

“2 Mo. 11, 1687, at Birmingham: Joel Bavly & Ann Short declared their in-
tention of marridg y® second time and all things being found clare was Left to their
freedom to proseed according to v¢ good order of truth.”

The recording of marriage certificates. now so uniformly done. was omitted in
this case, so that we do not have the exact date of the marriage.

There is reason to believe that Ann Short was a passenger on the * Welcome,”
with William Penn. and here we will present the

WiLL oF Isaac INGRAM.

Upon the Twenty Sixth day of the Seaventh Month 1682 I Isaac Ingram late
of Garton late of Surry yeoman being weake of body. vet of Pffect minde & memory
doe make & ordaine this my last Will & Testament on board the Welcome Rob!
Greenway Mr. bound for Pennsilvania (vizt)

Item 1 give unto my Sister Miriam Short lately deceased her three Children
Adam, Miriam & Anne Short all that Thirty pounds lving in Ambrose Riggs hands
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living at Garton in the County of Surrey to be equally divided between them (vizt)
Tenn pounds apiece further it is my will & minde that my Sisters Children aforesaid
have all the goods on board the Welcome equally divided between them.

It. I give & bequeath to Jane Batchelor ffive pounds.

It. 1 give & bequeath to Tho. ffitzwater ffive pounds.

I give & bequeath to David O)gden Two pounds.

I give & bequeath to John Songhurst tenn pounds.

I give & bequeath to Thomas Wynne ffive pounds.

I give & bequeath all the remainder of my mony every where to the poore ot our
ffriends called Quakers.

It. T doe Constitute & appoint John Songhurst & Tho: Wynne to he my Sole
Executors of this my last Will & Testament In witnesse whereof I have hereunto
putt my hand & Scale the day & veare above-written.

the marke of
Isaac 1 1 IxoraM  (Seal)
Signed Sealed X delivered
in the p'sence of us

Philadelphia in the Province of Pennsilvania: This day was brought before me
Christopher Tavlor Regist® Gent™ of the said Province the will above written by
Jobhn Songhurst & Tho: Wynne Joint Exec™ therein menconed & was proved &
attested by the Testimony of Richard Ingelo & (Geo: Thomson & approved by me
und® my hand & Seale of my office.

CurisTOPHER TavLor Regist™ general.

The argument here is that if the children had not been aboard the ** Welcome "
the testator would have heen likely to direct the sale of the goods and the transmis-
sion of the proceeds to them in England.

The next act was the marriage of (ieorge Thomson to Miriam Short, which
probably resulted from their acquaintance on hoard the * Welcome,” from the 30th
of August to the 29th of ()ctober, 1682.

“ At a Co't held at Chester for the County of Chester ffebr: 14th 1682 & ad-
journed unto y® 27'h of yv® same moneth. John Simcock PTfsident, Tho: Brasy,
William Clayton. Rob! Wade. John Bezer. Justices: Thomas Vsher Sheriffe, Tho:
Revell Clerke.”

* George Thompson appeared at y® Coft & none appeareing against him was
Cleared by Proclamation.”

“ Lawrence Carolus. for marrying v¢ abovesd Geo: Thompson & one Merriam
Short, Contrary to the Lawes of y® Province, according to his warrt appeared this
Cort, was deferred untill y¢ next Sitting of y* Coft, & y® said Lawrence upon Ja:
Saundrlands engageing in Coft for his appeareance then; y® said Lawrence at that
tyme dismissed.”

At a Court held the 27th of the 4th month, called June, 1683, * Lawrence Caro-
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lus by v¢ Ingagem' of Ja: Saundtlands was to appeare at this Coft But was called
three tymes & appeared not.”

Lawrence Carolus or Lars Lock, was the Swedish priest. Just what was his
offence does not appear but it may have been in marrying a minor without consent of
her relatives or guardians. There is nothing further on record about the case.

George Thomson held 200 acres of land in Concord Township, on rent, in 1684, but his
married life was not long. His widow married William White, a wheelwright. who obtained
a warrant for land in Brandywine Hundred, New Castle County, in 1092, but ten years later
she was again a widow. She was married a third time, 9 Mo. 30, 1704, at Chichester Meeting.
to Aaron Coppock, of Aston Township, which was said to be also her residence. They removed.
about 1713, to Nottingham Township, on the borders of Maryland, where he filled the positions
of overseer. elder and finally of minister in Nottingham Meeting. He was born 10 Mo. 25.
1662, in Cheshire, England, and died 10 Mo. 10, 1726, leaving his wife again a widow.

By her first husband she had a son Ralph Thomson who was taxed in Marlborough Town-
ship 1719 to 1726, and in E. Fallowfield from 1735 to 1740. Prior to 1729 he purchased 73
acres of land in what became Newlin Township. By her second husband she had John White,
who married Oct. 31, 1717, at Nottingham Meeting. Mary Job, daughter of Andrew and Eliza-
beth Job, of Nottingham: Samuel White, who married 2 Mo. 21, 1726, llannah Piggott, of Cecil
County, Maryland: Elizabeth White, living 1726. By her third husband (who had children by a
former wife), she had at least Miriam, who married Richard Jones, 8 Mo. 12, 1727, and John
Coppock, who married 1 Mo. 16, 1731, Margaret Coulson. Two descendants of the last were with
John Brown, in 1839. when he began his insurrection at Harper’s Ferry with the desire to de-
stroy slavery.

Adam Short, the brother of Ann Baily, settled in New Castle County, where he married
about 1712 Martha Metcalf, widow of Thomas. Miriam Short, who married John Bush Jan. 6,
1728, at the Swedes' Church. was doubtless a daughter by a former wife.

Joew Bany Buvs Laxn,

At a Court held at Chester 12th of September, 1694: * A Deed Past ffrom
‘I'homas Nossiter and Ann his wife to Joell Bavly for one hundred And ffivety Accres
of land lying in the Township of Midletowne: the Deed hereing Date the 15th Day
of the 12th month, 1692."

This is an error as to quantity. It appears that William Penn on Sept. 15, 1681,
conveyed 5000 acres of land to John ap John and Thomas Wynne. of Wales. and they,
on 12 mo. 14, 1681. 150 acres thereof to William Johnson. of Worthenburie, in
Flintshire. This was laid out in Middletown ‘Township. and Johnson dying. his
widow married Thomas Nossiter of Chester County. Tut in 1692 residing on Old-
man’s Creek, Salem Co.. N. J. Joel Baily's purchase was only fifty acres. which lay
on Chester Creek a little helow the present village of (Glen Riddle. By another deed.
of 1 mo. 1, 1694, Joel Baily purchased fifty acres on the west side of the creek, in
Aston. from John Nield. to whom Penn conveyved 250 acres 1 mo. 22. 1681. Joel
Baily probably resided for several vears on the Middletown side. and later on the
Aston side. The following entries on the court records may not be of much im-
portance. vet they illustrate the customs of the time.

At Orphans’ Court, Sth of March, 1694-5: * William Brown and John Baldwin
was called and appeared to answer the complaint of John Dutton, Edward Dutton
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and Thomas Dutton. ‘The Court allowed that John Neeld & Mary his wife, at the
request of the orphans [sons of the said Mary], be guardians for the above named
complainants, and do also allow Thomas Cartwright and Joel Baily as security for
John Neald and Mary his wife, to the value of two hundred and fifty Pounds. And
it is also ordered that the old Guardians' accounts be paid and cleared before us at the
Court by the new ones.”

*“ Thomas Cartwright and Joell Baly have Also Promised Lefore the Court to
become hound ffor the Indemnefiing of John Beals & Robert Carter ffor the seaven
bonds Given To Thomas Green ffor the value of one hundred and ffive Pounds to be
paid Att seven Payments.”

March 14, 1694-5: ‘A deed of mortgage Past from Joell bayly unto John
Neals and his wife Mary for The Payment of ffive pounds A yeare dureing the
naturall lifes of the said John Neald and Mary his wife and when the said John
Nealds died then two parts of the ffive pounds is no more to be paid and If that his
wife dies then theres the third Part to Sease to be paid as the Deed more Att large
makes Apeare the Deed Is for both the plantations of the said Joell baylys, bearing
Date the second Martch 1694-5.

“ There was seven bonds Acknowledged by John Neald: Thomas Cartwright:
& Joell baily unto Thomas Green ffor the Sum of one hundred and ffive Pounds to
be Paid ffiveteene Pounds a yeare the T'wenty Sixth Day of Martch yearly the first
bond to be Paid the 26th day of Martch in the yeare one thousand six hundred and
ninty six and so yearly tell the last be Paid- which will be compleated In the yeare
on Thousand seven hundred and Two: Every bond vnder the Pennelty of thirty
Pounds If not paid According two the time Speatified to the said Thomas Green or
his orders, by the aliove hound John Neeld or Thomas Cartwright or Joell baily by
they or theyr heiers Executors, &c."”

At Court, 12th 4th Mo. (June) 1695: * Joell Baylee in the behalfe of Daniell
Baylee Acknowledged A Deed ffor on hundred and Twenty ffive Acres of land to
John Ridlye with meadow belonging to It the land & meadow lying in the Town-
ship of West Towne the Deed bearing Date v® 6 day of June 1695."”

It is noted on the court record. 1 Mo. 9th 1697-8, that Joell Bayle was appointed
Constable of Middle Town. In that day every landowner was required to serve in
the township offices. He probably removed about the close of 1698 to the other side
of the creek, in Aston Township, and thereby became a member of Concord Meeting.
His children born prior to this date were recorded by Chester Monthly Meeting, but
there was a failure to enter the births of the three vounger ones on the Concord
records. He frequently served on committees of Concord Monthly Meeting, and on
11 Mo. 10, 1703. he and John Lea were appointed representatives to the Quarterly
Meeting.

On 12 Mo. 29, 1703-4, he was appointed constable for Aston, but at the monthly
meeting for Chichester and Concord, 10 Mo. (December) 11th 1704, * Joel Bayly
Layd his intention of his and his familyes Removall to New-wark [now Kennet]
Monthly Meeting, desiering a Certificate from this meeting.” At the next meeting,
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12 Mo. 12th, his request was granted and some persons directed to produce a cer-
tificate to the next meeting. I'his was doubtless done and the certificate signed 1 Mo.
12, 1704-5, but no minute made thereof.

He now settled in Marlborough ‘Township near the present village of Marlbor-
ough. but it has not heen ascertained that he ohtained title to any land for some years
later. On Septemher 8. 1713. Joel Baily. of Marlborow. weaver, and Ann his wife.
and Aaron Coppock. of Ashtown. veoman. and Miriam his wife, conveyed to Thomas
Dutton the two tracts on Chester Creek: bhut why the Coppocks joined in the deed
is not explained. It may be that an agreement had heen entered into to convey the
land to them at some previous time. ‘I'he consideration paid by TThomas Dutton was
£37:108

Joel Baily subsequently made the following purchases of land: From Jacob
Taylor, of Philadelphia, the Surveyor (General. 200 acres. which had been surveved
Dec. 23, 1713, and patented to Tavlor Nov. 13. 1714, who conveved to Bailv two
days later. From Thomas Wickersham Sept. 26. 1718. 200 acres next south of the
above. From Nathaniel Newlin. of Concord, March 27. 1725. for £68: 8. 228 acres,
part of 7100 acres which the latter had just purchased from the Free Society of
Traders, and which subsequently formed the township of Newlin. This tract joined
the first purchase on the north. From John Moore. April 1. 1726, 100 acres for £100,
lying a few miles to the westward of the other purchases. and from Richard Barnard,
April 3, 1726, 350 acres. adjoining the last. In these deeds Joel Baily was styled a
yeoman.

From the minutes of Newark, now Kennet, Monthly Meeting we make the fol-
lowing extracts:

11 Mo. 1, 1708-9: “ Joell Bavly hath Geo: Bishop’s Works.”

2 Mo. 2, 1709: George Bishop’s book is returned by Joell Bayly & taken by
Cornelius Empson.

7 Mo. 3, 1709: “ This meeting appoints Sam!" Graves and Joell Bayly to be
overseers of this meeting untill further order.”

9 Mo. 4, 1710: * Joell Bayly hath New England Judged till y® next meeting.”

10 Mo. 2, 1710: * Joell Bayly hath Robt Barcly's Apollogy.”

In that day, when books were few, the meetings purchased some of the standard
doctrinal works for circulation among the members.

10 Mo. 6, 1712: * Tho: Garnett & John Miller some time since being appointed
overseers of y® preparitive meeting of Kennett now desires to be discharged, to web
this meeting consents & appoints Tho: Wickersham & Joell Bayley overseers of y® sd
meeting.”

1 Mo. 6, 1713-14: “ John Miller is apointed oversere in the steed of Joel Bailey.”

7 Mo. 3, 1715: “ Thomas Wickersham and Joel Baily is appointed for Kennet
. . . to take care that the subscription be gathered for the youse of Charles Whiti-
core,”” who had met with loss by fire.

3 Mo. 4, 1717: " The severall preparitive meetings have appointed ffriends to
take care of burials: for Kennett Joel Bailey and Gayon Miller: Notingham, Aron
Coppock and Samuel Littler.”
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I Mo. 1. 1717-8: * Kennett preparitive meeting have made choice of Joel Bailey
to seet [sit] as an Elder with minestering ffriends in their meeting in the roome of
Thomas Wickersham, which this meeting approves of.”

Ann Baily, the wife of Joel, was also an active member of the meeting, and
from the women’s minutes we give some extracts:

‘* At our monthly meeting held at Senter [ Centre] v¢ 3 day of the 11 mo'® 1712:
Ann Bayly and Betty Caldwell are appointed to take the oversight of Malbery and
Kennet Meeting to see that things are kept in good order according to truth.”

1 Mo. 5, 1715: ‘“ Ann Bayly and Betty Caldwell are chosen overseers over
Kennet meeting to see that things are Cept in good order.”

9 Mo. 9, 1717: “ Ann Bayli and Betty Caldwell are chosen overseers ouer
kennet meeting which wee approve of.”

3 Mo. 6. 1721: " Ann Baily and Elizabeth Horn are chosen overseers over
kennet meeting which this meeting approves of."

Joel Baily was appointed constable for Marlborough Township Feb. 24, 1707-8,
for one year. He was also one of six jurors who. on the 14th of the same month
laid out a road from the central part of Londongrove T'ownship by way of the present
Avondale and Kennet Square to the Marlborough Street east of the “ Red Lion."”
Upon his last purchase of land, in what is now West Marlborough, he removed
thereto ; and being now near the meeting at Londongrove, a branch of New Garden
Monthly Meeting, which had been set apart from Newark in 1718, he desired a cer-
tificate to transfer his membership from the latter.

7 Mo. 3, 1726: “ Joell Baily in the behalfe of himselfe and family requests a
certificate of removall to Newgarden monthly meeting ; therefore we appoints Ellis
Lewis and Joseph Mendenhall to inquire into their conversation and prepare a cer-
tificate to the next meeting.”

Women say—*' request being made to this meeting in behalf of Ann Baily for a
certificate to Newgarding Monthly Meeting therefore we appoint Margaret Miller
and Susannah Prior to make enquiry into her conversation and make report to the men
friends thereof in order to have one Drawn.”

8 Mo. 8, 1726: “ The ffriends appointed to draw a certificate in the behalfe of
Joell Bailey and his family produced it to this meeting which was refered to the next
meeting by reason he not appearing.”

“ the two friends appointed to make enquiery into the conversation of Ann
Baily make report that they find nothing to obstruct the said request and have given
an account to the mens meeting.”

3 Mo. 6, 1726: ' The preparitive meeting of Kennett, by reason of our ffriend
Joell Bailey’s removal from the first-days meeting, have proceed to chuse an elder in
his steed, and presents Ellis Lewis to the consideration of this meeting, which is ap-
proved.”

The reception of the certificate by New Garden was noted under date of 10 Mo.
31, 1726.
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18 THE BAILY FAMILY.

JoEL BarLy’s WiLL.

The tenth day of December in y® year of our Lord one thousand seven Hundred
and twenty eight 1 Joel Baily of Marlborough in y* County of Chester in y® province
of Pensilvania, Sener, being verry sick and weake in body but of a sound minde and
perfect memory thanks be given to God therefore, Calling to minde y® mortality of
y® body doe make and ordain this to be my Last will and testament in manner and
form fowloing disanuling and Revoaking all other and former wills and tes-
tements Heartofore by me made; Ratifiing and Confirming this to be my Last will
and testement and no other. firstly I do Recomend my soul into the Hands of god
who gave it and my body unto y¢ earth to be buried in a decent maner at y® descre-
tion of my executors and as touching my eastate which god hath blesed me with I
Despose of as fowlloeth After my Just debts and funeral expences are Dischard
princepley and firstly I give and bequeath unto my son Daniel Baily eight pounds
to be paid within one year after my deceas. 1 also give unto my son I[saac baily
four pounds to be paid <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>